
 

 

 

 

 

Prosser Memorial Health 

Board of Commissioners 

 

Board Packet 

December 15, 2022 

 

 

 
  



 

December 13, 2022 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – WORK SESSION 
TUESDAY, December 13, 2022   

6:00 PM - WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
 AGENDA  

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams                       Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
Keith Sattler        Kristi Mellema, CQO 
Brandon Bowden                                                                                        Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
Neilan McPartland                                  Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 
                                                                                                                                   Annie Parker, CCOO 
                                                                                                                                    
  
        
                                 GUESTS:     Adam Trumbour, Senior Project Manager, NV5 
                                                                                                           Paul Kramer, Project Director, NV5 
                                                                                                           Brandon Potts, Bouten Construction 
                                                                                                           Nick Gonzalez, Bouten Construction 
                                                                                                           Kurt Broeckelmann, bcDG                                                                                          

                   
  I.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
                II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
 III.   SERVICES 
        A.  Replacement Facility Update                         
            1. Design Updates                                                                                                      
                   a. DOH/USDA/City of Prosser Reviews                                                                 bcDG/NV5/Bouten 
                        1. Development Agreement                                                                                          NV5 
                   b. SVID                                                                                                                                    NV5/Bouten 
      c. Washington DOT                                                                                                             bcDG 
                   d. Furniture Fair                                                                                                                    NV5 
                      
           2. Construction/Schedule/Budget                                                                                                                  
                   a. Construction Update-OAC Meeting, Groundbreaking                                            Bouten/NV5 
                   b. Schedule (Attachment G) (Attachment H)                                                    NV5/Bouten/bcDG    
                   c. Project Budget                                                                                                                   NV5                                     

 
 



 

December 13, 2022 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

           3. Financing                                                                                                                                        David 
            a. USDA  
                  b. Construction Loan (Attachment Y)                                                                                                                           

 
 

 
              IV.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP  
                     A. 2023 Capital and Operating Budgets (Attachment W)                                                             David/All 
 
      
               V.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
                    A. RCW 42.30.110 (l) To consider proprietary or confidential nonpublished information related to the     

              development, acquisition or implementation of state purchased health care services as provided in RCW  
                          41.05.26 
 
              VI.  RESUME REGULAR SESSION 
  
  
 
 
              VII. ADJOURN 



November 17, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

THURSDAY, December 15, 2022     
6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  AGENDA 
 

COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams        Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

              Keith Sattler                       Kristi Mellema, CQO  
              Brandon Bowden       Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
              Neilan McPartland                                                                                                 Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO      
                                                                              Annie Parker, CCOO 
                    
   I.  CALL TO ORDER 
       A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
   
 
  II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 III.  APPROVE AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Agenda 
 
 
 IV.  CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for November 17, 2022. 
       B.   Payroll and AP Vouchers #168941 through #169602 dated 11-05-22 through 12-07-22 in the amount of 

$6,931,598.59. Board Policies: Medical Staff Recruitment; Exclusive Designated Medical Specialty Services; 
Affiliation; and Issue Resolution Procedure-Exempt Staff. 

              Action Requested – Consent Agenda 
 

                   
 V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.  Medical Staff Report and Credentialing       Dr. Martin 
             1. Advancement from Provisional           

None. 
Action Requested - Advancement from Provisional 

 
 

          2. New Appointment 
None. 
Action Requested – New Appointment and Requested Clinic Privileges 

 



November 17, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
         3.  Reappointment 
              Ryan Steed, CRNA - Reappointment to Advanced Practice Clinician staff with requested privileges in Anesthesia 

January 1, 2023, through December 31, 2025. 
 
             Maria Recio Restrepo, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology 

effective January 1, 2023, through December 31, 2025. 
               Action Requested – Reappointment and Requested Clinical Privileges 
 
 
      B.  2023 Medical Staff Model & Provider Recruitment/Succession Plan (Attachment P)         Dr. Sollers/Craig/Annie P 

 Action Requested- 2023 Medical Staff Model 
 
 
            
 
 
VI. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
         A.  Review Financial Reports for November 2022 (Attachment V)                                                                David                                                              
               Action Requested – Financial Reports 
 
        B.  Review 2023 Operating and Capital Budgets (Attachment W)                   David                      
               Action Requested – 2023 Operating and Capital Budget 

 
 
 
VII.  SERVICES 
 
         A. Review PMH Mission, Vision, Values and Standards of Behavior (Attachment K)                              Craig 
               Action Requested- PMH Mission, Vision, Values and Standards of Behavior   
 
         B.  Review 2023 PMH Strategic Plan (Attachment J)                         Craig 
               Action Requested – 2023 PMH Strategic Plan                                           
 
         C. Review 2023 PMH Marketing Plan (Attachment L)                                          Shannon 
              Action Requested – 2023 PMH Marketing Plan 
 
         D. Review 2023 IT Plan (Attachment M)        Craig 
              Action Requested – 2023 PMH IT Plan   

 
 
VIII.  QUALITY 
         A.  Review 2022 Environment of Care (EOC) Report and 2023 EOC Plan (Attachment X)                       Kristi 
               Action Requested – 2023 PMH Environment of Care Plan  
 
         B.  Legislative and Political Updates                                                                                            Commissioner Bestebreur 
 
         C.  CEO/Operations Report                                                                                                                                    Craig 
 
 
  
  IX.  ADJOURN 



 

 

 
PMH 

Board of Commissioners 
Work Plan – FY2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
January 
 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve 2022 Strategic Plan 
and 2022 Patient Care Scorecards 

• Sign Financial Disclosure and Conflict 
of Interest Statements 

• Approve 2022 Risk Management and 
Quality Assurance Plans 

• Select and Approve Board Officers 

• Review Board Committee structure 
and membership 

 
SERVICES: 

• Approve acquisition of surgical 
equipment 

• Approve radiologist contracts 

• Approve Construction Loan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 Employee Engagement 
Survey Results 

• Review 2021 Medical Staff 
Engagement Survey Results 

 
QUALITY: 

• Review Board Self-Evaluation 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review semi-annual financial 
performance report for PMH Clinics 

 
SERVICES: 
     Replacement Facility Update 

• Construction Loan Schedule Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
February SERVICES: 

• Approve construction mini-MACC 

• Approve construction documents 
 

QUALITY: 

• Approve 2022 Board Action Plan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review and Approve 2022 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend AHA Governance Conference  
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary report 

• Review Patient Engagement Plan 
 
SERVICES: 

Replacement Facility Update:  

• Construction Documents 

• Mini-MACC 

• Schedule 

March QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2022 Corporate Compliance 
Plan 

• Approve 2022 Infection Prevention 
Control Plan 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Review and Approve 2022 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 

 
MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Providers’ Day Celebration 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accept 2021 Audit Report 
 
SERVICES: 

• Approve the MACC / GMP for the 
new facility 

 
 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review 2021 Utilization Review 
Performance 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review 2021 Corporate Compliance 
Report  

• Review 2021 Infection Prevention 
Summary 
 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Performance 
Report 

• Review the Communications 
Calendar 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Presentation of the 2021 Audit 
Report by Auditors 

• Capital Campaign Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
PATIENT LOYALTY 

• Approve the 2022 Utilization Review 
Plan 

 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• MCAA / GMP 

• USDA Update 

• Budget 

April QUALITY: 

• Approve 2022 Community Benefits 
Report 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Conduct CEO Evaluation 
 

SERVICES: 

• Approve the MACC / GMP for the 
new facility 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• MCAA / GMP 

• USDA Update 

• Budget 
QUALITY: 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Review 2021 Community Benefits 
Report 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 Leadership Performance 
(LEM) 

• Review Employee Engagement Plan 

• Review the Communications 
Calendar 
 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 FPPE/OPPE Summary 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Interpreter Services Plan 

• Call Center Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
May EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Hospital Week 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Medical Staff Engagement Plan 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Employee Retirement Update 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Customer Service Program 
 
 

June QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2021 CAH Annual Report 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2022 Cost Report 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Report 2022 Q1 Utilization Review 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leader Assessment and 
Development Program 
 

SERVICES: 

• Marketing Update 

• PMH Telehealth Update 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accounting Software Update 
 

July MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend BOC, Medical Staff and 
Leadership Engagement Activity 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Single Audit 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Review PMH Clinic productivity 
 
 

QUALITY: 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
 

 
 

• Quality Committee Report 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Board Judiciary Responsibilities 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Human Resources Update 

• Review Leadership and Exempt Wage 
Scales 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review Semi-Annual Financial 
Performance Report for PMH Clinics 

• Foundation Update 
 

August EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend end of summer Engagement 
Activity for BOC, Medical Staff, and 
all staff 

 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 
 

 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Benefit Changes 

• Review Leadership Development 
Activities 

 
SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility update 
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Nurse Educator Update 

October  QUALITY: 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
• Conduct 2023 Strategic Planning  

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
 
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leadership Accountability 
Resource Tools 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary 
 

November FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Property Tax 
Request for County Commissioners 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• iVantage Update 
 
SERVICES: 

• Review draft 2023 Strategic Plan; 
2023 Marketing and IT Plans; and 
Medical Staff Model/2023 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Non-exempt (union) 
performance evaluation template 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review draft 2023 Budget 
 

December QUALITY: 

• Complete Board Self-Evaluations 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve the 2023 Environment of 
Care Plan 

 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review the 2022 Environment of 
Care Plan 
 

 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
SERVICES: 

• Approve 2023 Strategic Plan; 2023 
Marketing and IT Plans; and Medical 
Staff Model/2023 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2023 Operating and Capital 
Budgets 

• Banking relationship Selection 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend holiday celebration 
 

 



                       2022 -  Patient Care Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 2020

Quality

Left Without Being Seen <0.80% 2.02% 1.47% 0.88% 2.25% 2.97% 3.88% 2.89% 5.09% 4.40% 3.02% 3.60% 3.07% 1.47% 0.80%

Median Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted Patients <44 min 53             56             51             51             45             51             53             63             53             52             58              53             60 70

Median Time from ED Arrival to Departure for Discharged ED Patients <107 min 109           115           114           114           110           134           128           128           143           131           136            124           117 128

Severe Preeclamptic Mothers:  Timely Treatment Rate >90.00% 42.86% 57.14% 86.21% 60.00% 84.62% 90.91% 88.89% 100.00% 66.67% 68.75% 66.67% 70.00% N/A N/A

All-Cause Unplanned 30 Day Inpatient Readmissions <2.70% 10.61% 2.74% 4.92% 3.77% 5.45% 9.09% 5.63% 6.45% 8.06% 3.85% 5.45% 5.96% 5.80% 3.80%

Sepsis - Early Management Bundle >94.40% 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% N/A 96.55% 94.40% 72.73%

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.07% 0.00% 0.00% 0.57% 0.00% 0.00% 0.45% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.09% 0% 0.29%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result  <21.89% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 23.35% 26.83% 22.76% 20.98% 17.80% 17.13% 22.07% 21.89% 27.61%

Medication Reconciliation Completed >90.00% 96.30% 94.74% 90.74% 92.00% 88.00% 85.00% 76.67% 81.67% 96.49% 95.00% 95.00% 90.00% 46% 47.15%

Turnaround time of 30 minutes or less for STAT testing <30 min 22.0         21.0         21.0         21.0         19.0         19.0         18.0         19.0         19.0         18.0         20.0          19.7         38 37.5

Median Time to ECG for Patients Presenting to the ED with Chest Pain < 6.3 min 5.0            3.0            5.0            5.0            4.0            4.0            5.0            3.0            4.0            4.0            4.0             4.2            6.3 7

Surgical Site Infection <0.19% 0.00% 0.59% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.03% 0.19% 0.25%

Bar Code Scanning:  Medication Compliance >93.50% 94.91% 95.77% 95.43% 95.00% 94.54% 93.76% 91.55% 93.34% 92.50% 92.15% 90.03%  93.54% 93.50% 98.90%

Bar Code Scanning:  Patient Compliance >94.70% 96.42% 95.81% 96.17% 96.16% 95.95% 94.83% 92.35% 93.55% 92.87% 92.90% 89.10%  94.19% 94.70% N/A

*Overall Quality Performance Benchmark (iVantage) >61 61             61             36             36             36             36             36             36             36             36             36              36             61 53

*Falls with Injury <2 -           -           -           -           -           1               -           -           -           1               -            1               3 2

Green at or above Goal  (4)

Yellow within 10% of Goal  (2)

Red More than 10% below Goal  (0)



                               2022 -  Strategic Plan Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 Avg 2020 Avg

Patient Loyalty

IP - "Would Recommend" >93.1% 94.8% 92.4% 91.7% 92.9% 90.5% 96.4% 79.2% 90.8% 90.3% 95.3% 95.7% 92.0% 93.1% 87.9%

ED - "Would Recommend" >84.0% 83.9% 81.7% 76.4% 88.0% 88.8% 90.7% 67.7% 85.2% 91.3% 88.6% 89.4% 86.0% 84.0% 81.4%

Acute Care - "Would Recommend" >91.8% 90.9% 94.4% 87.5% 94.4% 87.5% 91.7% 79.2% 85.0% 97.2% 95.0% 94.6% 90.6% 91.8% 84.1%

OB - "Would Recommend" >93.6% 99.0% 100.0% 97.7% 100.0% 88.9% 100.0% 75.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 96.4% 93.6% 92.3%

Outpatient Surgery - "Would Recommend" >96.6% 100.0% 100.0% 97.2% 97.7% 94.4% 95.3% 98.5% 91.4% 95.2% 97.2% 100.0% 96.2% 96.6% 89.8%

Clinic - "Would Recommend" >91.0% 92.8% 97.5% 91.7% 97.6% 91.8% 94.3% 86.8% 90.6% 92.5% 92.6% 93.5% 93.0% 91.0% 87.3%

Outpatient - "Would Recommend" >94.1% 98.1% 96.1% 93.5% 96.0% 96.0% 94.8% 94.5% 90.6% 92.1% 96.2% 95.4% 94.8% 94.1% 88.1%

Composite Score >92.9% 95.7% 95.2% 94.4% 94.1% 93.8% 93.7% 93.2% 94.0% 92.7% 93.2% 93.3% 93.3% 92.9% N/A

Medical Staff Development

Medical Staff Turnover <10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 4% 0% 1% 0% 0% 0% 5% 12% 0.2%

Prosser Specialty Clinic Visits 1,352         1,386          1,429        1,617        1,428        1,366        1,422        1,272        1,681        1,365        1,504       1,548       1,456        1,318        954           

Benton City Clinic Visits 868            775             650           822           657           870           730           718           899           881           909          889          800           732           837           

Prosser RHC Clinic Visits 1,291         1,063          1,111        1,206        1,106        1,211        1,122        1,152        1,398        1,138        1,213       1,136       1,169        1,227        1,226        

Grandview Clinic Visits 969            1,055          833           1,021        873           986           960           904           1,065        1,107        1,001       898          973           778           589           

Women's Health Center  679            508             600           660           533           611           708           554           648           569           584          589          597           602           601           

*# of Active Medical Staff >51 52 53 53 54 55 54 55 54 54 55 55 54 51             45             

Employee Development

403(B) Participation Rate >98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 99% 99% 99% 99% 98% 98% 46%

Average Recruitment Time (days) <21 19 26 40 11 15 19 22 17.5 19 15 17 20             21             32             

# of Open Positions (Vacancies) <23 32 28 35 31 32 39 39 29 24 21 37 32             32             29             

Hours of Overtime - Overtime/Total Hours Worked <4.5% 6.8% 5.3% 4.9% 6.0% 6.3% 6.1% 8.2% 7.1% 7.1% 6.4% 5.7% 6.4% 6.1% 5.9%

Agency - Cost/Total Labor <7.7% 6.2% 10.6% 6.9% 6.9% 5.7% 7.9% 7.7% 10.5% 8.9% 10.3% 9.1% 8.2% 7.7% 7.6%

Turnover Rate <0.6% 0.6% 1.2% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 1.2% 0.6% 0.0% 0.6% 0.0% 1.1% 0.7% 0.9% 0.6%

Timely Evaluations >71.8% 95.1% 85.0% 84.2% 93.0% 79.0% 80.0% 81.0% 78.0% 91.0% 90.2% 100.0% 87.0% 71.8% 70.2%

Education Hours/FTE >2.15 0.64            1.33          1.39          0.95          0.68          0.75          0.44          1.05          1.68          1.22         2.26         1.13          1.05          1.22          

New Hire (Tenure) < 1 year <10% 0.6% 0.6% 0% 0.6% 0.3% 0.3% 1.4% 0.3% 0.3% 0.8% 0.8% 0.5% 10% 0%

* Lost Workdays due to On-the-Job Injuries <10.25 11 7 7 0 0 6.3 13 15 8 12 1 7               19.49       10.25       

Quality

ED Encounters - Left Without Being Seen <0.8% 2.0% 1.5% 0.9% 2.3% 3.0% 3.9% 2.9% 5.1% 4.4% 3.0% 3.6% 3.0% 1.4% 0.8%

*Falls with Injury <2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 3               2               

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.1% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.0% 0.3%

All-Cause Unplanned Readmissions within 30 Days <2.7% 10.6% 2.7% 4.9% 3.7% 5.5% 9.1% 5.6% 6.5% 8.1% 3.9% 5.0% 6.0% 6.1% 3.8%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result <21.88% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 23.35% 26.83% 22.76% 20.98% 17.80% 17.13% 22.15% 21.88% 27.61%

Services

ED Visits 1,083         1,287          949           1,138        1,246        1,448        1,419        1,384        1,375        1,501        1,492       1,668       1,355        1,105        805           

Inpatient Admissions 96               123             98             115           102           89             120           121           123           96             94             119          109           116           83             

OB Deliveries 50               47               41             61             46             41             50             57             55             42             49             44             48             49             41             

Surgeries and Endoscopies 187            162             170           268           274           288           337           284           331           301           294          318          275           179           101           

Diagnostic Imaging Procedures 2,851         2,462          2,619        3,134        2,915        2,981        3,091        2,691        3,125        3,317        3,391       3,177       2,991        2,992        2,280        

Lab Procedures 14,000       14,139       13,806     14,818     13,359     15,075     14,738     13,972     16,271     14,778     16,116     19,201     15,116     14,327     11,768     

Adjusted Patient Days 1,900         1,627          1,819        2,016        1,838        2,127        2,461        2,502        2,545        2,500        2,180       2,281       2,172        1,697        1,393        

Therapy Visits 1,651         1,225          1,391        1,542        1,339        1,420        1,701        1,540        1,817        1,448        1,517       1,410       1,486        1,453        1,314        

Outpatient Special Procedures Visits 325            241             221           332           249           277           306           364           389           418           433          497          339           324           247           

Financial Performance

Net Days in Accounts Receivable 50               55               58             55             56             55             55             55             55             55             53 55.83 53             51             63             

*Total Margin 6.90% 5.2% 13.6% 13.3% 11.2% 5.2% 16.8% 7.4% 23.6% 8.4% 11.2% 12.8% 12.0% 18.40% 4.50%

Net Operating Revenue/FTE 19,431$    17,959$     18,695$   21,800$   19,651$   20,465$   21,737$   18,317$   23,184$   22,020$   19,920$  19,877$  20,330$   20,682$   17,191$   

Labor as % of net Revenue 56.30% 63.18% 52.36% 48.39% 62.85% 60.40% 50.97% 59.42% 45.01% 56.04% 54.56% 50.56% 54.89% 57.00% 61.30%

Operating Expense/FTE 18,177$    17,959$     16,155$   17,591$   17,598$   19,469$   17,756$   17,086$   17,873$   19,609$   17,866$  17,461$  17,857$   16,940$   15,891$   

*Days Cash on Hand 109            142             150           154           150           148           152           154           161           163           163          167          163           155           183           

Commercial % 28.60% 29.90% 30.90% 31.80% 31.70% 31.40% 31.60% 31.60% 31.30% 31.70% 31.60% 31.60% 31.60% 29.00% 29.00%

Total Labor Expense/Total Expense 60.20% 60.73% 60.33% 59.41% 62.99% 62.87% 60.43% 62.50% 58.03% 62.86% 60.68% 57.46% 60.75% 61.00% 61.30%

Green at or above Goal 

Yellow within 10% of Goal

Red More than 10% below Goal

*Cumulative Total - goal is year end number



 

BOARD WORK SESSION                                                                    November 15, 2022                                              WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
 

STAFF PRESENT GUESTS   COMMUNITY        
MEMBERS 

• Dr. Steve Kenny                        

• Keith Sattler  

• Glenn Bestebreur 

• Susan Reams 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 

• Annie Parker, CCOO 

• Adam Trumbour, Senior Project 
Manager, NV5 

• Gary Hicks, Financial Advisor 

• Brandon Potts, Vice President- 
Bouten Construction 

• Nick Gonzalez, Bouten 
Construction 

• Kurt Broeckelmann, bcDG 
 

None. 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

 I.   CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order by 
Commissioner Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

None. None. 

II.    Public Comment  None. None. 

III.  SERVICES DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

        A.  Replacement Facility  
              Update 

    

    1. Design Updates 
         a. DOH/USDA/City of      

Prosser Reviews 
              (Attachment J) 
         b. SVID  
             (Attachment K) 
         c. Washington DOT 
         d. Furniture Fair 
              (Attachment L) 
 

Adam, Kurt, and Craig provided the Board 
with updates regarding regulatory agency 
(DOH, USDA, City of Prosser) reviews; 
ongoing work with SVID to bury the 
existing overflow canal on hospital 
property; Washington DOT and the 
furniture fair. 
 
 

None. None. 



                2.  Construction/ 
                      Schedule/Budget 

a.  Construction   
update 

      (Attachment M) 
                         b.  Schedule 

(Attachment I) 
c.  Project Budget  
     (Attachment N) 
     (Attachment O) 
 

Nick and Adam provided a contractor 
update and reviewed a draft schedule. 
 
 
 

None. None. 

                3.  Financing      
a. USDA  
b. Construction Loan 

 
 
 

Gary provided an update on all financing 
activities, including the USDA, and the 
construction loan. 

None.       None. 

IV. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

        A. Draft 2023 Operating    
(Attachment DD) & Capital 
Budgets (Attachment EE) 

 
        B.  2023 Property Tax Levy / 

Resolution (Attachment FF) 
(Attachment GG) 

 

David provided an update on the Draft 
2023 Operating & Capital Budgets and on 
the 2023 Property Tax Levy / Resolution. 

None. To be approved at 
the November 
Board Meeting. 

V. ADJOURN 

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 7:53 p.m. 

 



 

 

 

        BOARD MEETING                                                                                  November 17, 2022,                                               WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT                         MEDICAL STAFF                                              GUESTS 

• Steve Kenny Ph.D. 

• Glenn Bestebreur  

• Susan Reams 

• Keith Sattler 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland  

• Brandon Bowden (absent) 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO  

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCQO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Annie Parker, CCOO 

• Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 

• Syed Hashmi, MD 
 

 

              AGENDA                                                                                                                                                              DISCUSSION                                    ACTION      FOLLOW-UP 

   I.    Call to Order  The meeting was called to order by Commissioner 
Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

    

      A. Pledge of Allegiance        

 II.  Public Comment None.  None. None. 

III.  Approve Agenda 
 

None. Commissioner Reams made a Motion to 
approve the October 27, 2022, Agenda.  The 
Motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Sattler and passed with 6 in favor, 0 
opposed.                 

 

IV.  APPROVE CONSENT 
       AGENDA  
      A. Board of Commissioners     
           Meeting Minutes for 
           October 27, 2022. 
       
 
 

None. Commissioner Bestebreur made a Motion to 
approve the Consent Agenda. The Motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Reams          
and passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed.  

None. 



 

 

      B. Payroll & AP Vouchers  
       #168541 through 
      #168940 dated 10.20.22 

           through 11.04.22 in the       
amount of 
$6,544,809.93. Surplus 
Items Resolution #1074 
(1) Tenant Floor 
Machine. 

V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT                                 DISCUSSION                                                                     ACTION                                       FOLLOW-UP 

     A.    Medical Staff Report     
and Credentialing 

 
 
 

  None. 

1. Advancement from 
Provisional 

Dr. Hashmi presented the following providers for 
Advancement from Provisional: 
 
Jennifer Brindle, MD – Active Staff privileges in 
Family Medicine effective December 1, 2022, 
through May 31, 2024. 
 
Caleb Haws, DO – Active Staff privileges in Internal 
Medicine effective December 1, 2022, through May 
31, 2024. 
 
 
 
 

A Motion to approve the Advancement from 
Provisional Appointment and requested 
Clinical Privileges that were reviewed and 
recommended by the Department Chair, the 
Credentialing Committee and Medical 
Executive Committee for the following 
providers was made by Commissioner 
Sattler and seconded by Commissioner 
Dietrich.  The Motion passed with 6 in favor, 
0 opposed. 

• Jennifer Brindle, MD 

• Caleb Haws, DO 

None. 

                      2.  New Appointments           
 

Dr. Hashmi presented the following New 
Appointments:   
 
William Michael McDonnell, MD – 
Provisional/Active staff with requested privileges in 
Gastroenterology effective December 1, 2022, 
through May 31, 2023. 
 

A Motion to approve the New Appointments 
and requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following providers was 
made by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner Sattler.  The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 

None. 



 

 

Karmina Bowen, ARNP – Provisional/Advanced 
Practice Clinician with requested privileges in 
Family Medicine effective December 1, 2022, 
through May 31, 2023.  
 
Stacie Olson, ARNP – Provisional/Advanced 
Practice Clinician with requested privileges in 
Emergency Medicine effective December 1, 2022, 
through May 31, 2023. 
 
Nadine Foist, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens staff 
with requested privileges in Obstetrics/Gynecology 
effective December 1, 2022, through May 31, 2023. 
 

 
 

• William Michael McDonnell, MD 

• Karmina Bowen, ARNP 

• Stacie Olson, ARNP 

• Nadine Foist, MD 

              3. Reappointment Dr. Hashmi presented the following providers for 
Reappointment:   
 
 
Robert Erwin, Jr. CRNA - Reappointment to 
Advanced Practice Clinician staff with requested 
privileges in Anesthesia December 1, 2022, through 
November 30, 2024. 
 
Tarvinder Singh, MD – Reappointment to 
Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in 
Neurology effective December 1, 2022, through 
November 30, 2024. 
 
Corey White, DO – Reappointment to Telemedicine 
staff with requested privileges in Nephrology 
effective December 1, 2022, through November 30, 
2024. 

         
 
 
 

A Motion to approve the reappointment and 
requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following provider was 
made by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner Dietrich.  The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

• Robert Erwin, Jr. CRNA 

• Tarvinder Singh, MD 

• Corey White, DO 

 



 

 

VI.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP                        DISCUSSION                                                                              ACTION                                                       FOLLOW-UP 

      A.  Review Financial  
            Reports for October 
            2022  

(Attachment CC) 
 

David Rollins presented the October 2022 Financial 
Reports.  
 

A Motion to accept the Financial Reports for 
October 2022, was made by Commissioner 
Dietrich, and seconded by Commissioner 
Sattler. The Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 
opposed. 
 

None. 

    B.   2023 Property Tax 
Resolution  

         (Attachment FF) 

David presented the 2023 Property Tax Resolution 
#1075. 

A Motion to approve the 2023 Property Tax 
Resolution #1075 was made by 
Commissioner Bestebreur and seconded by 
Commissioner Reams. The Motion passed 
with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 

None. 

   C. 2023 Property Tax Levy 
         (Attachment GG) 

David presented the 2023 Property, Tax Levy. A Motion to approve the 2023 Property, Tax 
Levy was made by Commissioner Bestebreur 
and seconded by Commissioner Reams. The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 

 

VII.  SERVICES                                                                      DISCUSSION                                                                        ACTION                                         FOLLOW-UP 

A.       Mission, Vision, Values 
and Standards of 
Behavior 

           (Attachment A) 
 

Craig presented the Draft Mission, Vision, Values & 
Standards of Behavior. 

None. To be approved 
by the Board in 
December. 

B.      Draft 2023 Strategic Plan 
          (Attachment B) 
          (Attachment C) 
          1. Patient Loyalty 
          2. Medical Staff 

Development 
          3. Employee 

Development  
          4. Quality 
          5. Services 
          6. Financial Stewardship 
 
 

Pillar Champions briefly discussed each Pillar of the 
draft 2023 Strategic Plan. 

None. To be approved 
by the Board in 
December. 



 

 

 

C.     Draft Medical Staff Model 
and 2023 Provider 
Recruitment/Succession 
Plan  

        (Attachment D) 

Dr. Sollers, Annie, and Craig presented the 
Draft Medical Staff Model and 2023 
Provider Recruitment/Succession Plan. 

None. 
 

To be approved 
by the Board in 
December. 

D.    Draft 2023 Marketing Plan 
        (Attachment E) 

Shannon presented the draft 2023 Marketing Plan. None. To be approved 
by the Board in 
December. 

E.     Draft 2023 IT Plan 
         (Attachment F) 

Craig presented the Draft 2023 IT Plan. None. To be approved 
by the Board in 
December. 

VIII. QUALITY 

A.    CEO/Operations Report Craig provided a brief Operations Report based 
upon his written report included in the November 
Board Packet.  

None. None. 

IX.  ADJOURN  

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 8:02 p.m. 



December 12, 2022 Finance Committee  

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday – December 12, 2022,  

7:00 a.m. – Vineyard Conference Room 
AGENDA 

 MEMBERS:          STAFF: 
 Keith Sattler         Craig Marks 
 Neilan McPartland        David Rollins  
 Brandon Bowden        Stephanie Titus 
                   
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
         I.   APPROVE MINUTES 

Action Requested – November 14, 2022, Minutes 

 

       II.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
              A.  Review Financials –November 2022 (Attachment V )                                                                      David 
                    Action Requested – November 2022 Financial Statements 
          
              B.  Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal                                         Stephanie 
 
   
             C.  Voucher Lists                                                                                                                                                 
                   Action Requested – Voucher List - Payroll and AP Vouchers # 168941 through #169602                         David 
                   Dated 11-05-22 through 12-07-22 in the amount of $6,931,598.59.  
 
             E.   Review 2023 Operating and Capital Budgets (Attachment W)                                                                      David 

    Action Requested- Review 2023 Operating and Capital Budgets 
 
 

             F. New Hospital Financing Update (Attachment Y)                                                                                                   David 
        
 
 
      
        III.  ADJOURN  

  

 

 



 

 

 

            FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  November 14, 2022                                    VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

                    
GUESTS 

• Keith Sattler 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Brandon Bowden 
 
 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Stephanie Titus, Director of Finance Operations 
 
 

  

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

  I.  CALL TO ORDER Keith Sattler called the meeting to order at 7:03 a.m.  
 
 

 

II.   APPROVE MINUTES  
 

A motion to approve the 
Finance Committee Meeting 
Minutes for October 24, 
2022, as presented was made 
by Neilan McPartland.  The 
motion was seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved.   

None. 

III.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP  
A. Review Financials –  

October 2022 
             (Attachment CC) 
              

Net Income of $904,660 in October and Gross Charges 
were $22,643,919 which was 16% higher than budget 
for the month and 38% greater than the prior year.  
Net Operating Revenue came in at $8,092,963 (3% 
over budget).   

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the October 
2022 Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 
of Commissioners was made 

None. 



 

 

 
Expenses were $7,258,383 in October and 0% over 
budget.  Surgeries were 294 vs 191 budget and ER 
visits were 1,492 vs 1,104 budget. 
 
Cash Flow was ($56,695) for the month and 
$3,298,621 YTD.  AR were at a net 53 days overall. 

by Neilan McPartland. The 
motion was seconded by 
Brandon Bowden and 
approved.   

      B.  Review Accounts Receivable  
            and Cash Goal  
 

AR was at 53 net days overall as Collections were 
$9,058,843 and better than goal at $8,332,452.  POS 
collections were $30,389 exceeding a budget of 
$15,000 and prior year $22,399.  POS collections YTD 
are $375,901 versus $150,000 budget and $172,589 
prior year. 

None. None. 

    C.  Voucher Lists  
           Payroll and AP Vouchers 
           #168541 through #168940 
           Dated 10-20-22 through   
           11-04-22 in the amount of  
         $6,544,809.93. Surplus Item 

Resolution # 1074: (1) Tenant 
Floor Machine.       

 
 
 
 

A motion to recommend 
approval of the Voucher Lists 
# 168541 through #168940 
dated 10-20-22 through 11-
04-22 in the amount of            
$6,544,809.93 was made by 
Neilan McPartland, seconded 
by Brandon Bowden, and 
approved.    

None. 

D.   2023 Operating Budget-Draft 
(Attachment DD)  

 

Draft Budget was presented showing $280,241,448 
gross revenue, $100,121,337 net revenue, 
$93,127,565 operating expenses and $6,504,352 net 
income. 

None. None. 

E.    2023 Capital Budget-Draft 
(Attachment EE) 

 

Draft Capital Budget was presented showing $532,255 
in 2023 approved capital purchases and $367,304 of 
carryover approved capital purchases from 2022 that 
have not been completed but expected in 2023. 

None. None. 

IV.  ADJOURN       

Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:56 am. 

 



MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

  PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 

FROM:   CRAIG J. MARKS, CEO 

DATE:   December 2022 

RE:  CEO REPORT 

______________________________________________________________________________  

SERVICES 

1.  Replacement Facility Update 

     November was a month of historic significance as it relates to our Replacement Facility Project. 

First, after waiting several months, the Washington Department of Health (DOH) issued our 

Authorization to Begin Construction (A2BC) on November 7th. Second, the City of Prosser issued our 

full building permit on November 9th. Third, on November 18th, the United States Department of 

Agriculture (USDA) issued their concurrence for PMH to begin construction of our replacement 

facility (Attachment A). With the approval of these three agencies, we were able to finalize our 

groundbreaking date (Attachment B), and on November 29th, we hosted our official Groundbreaking 

Ceremony (Attachment C). I would like to apologize to everyone, especially our staff, for the short 

notice of the event and for having it on a Tuesday morning. Unfortunately, if we wanted to get the 

construction started our options were limited as we attempted to accommodate the USDA officials. 

As you may recall, we originally planned to break ground in May/June, but inflation changed all that. 

Fortunately, we were still able to begin the construction in 2022, although six months later than 

planned five years ago. Our plan is to use our 2022 Holiday Party to thank our staff for their support 

of this project, as most staff were busy working and unable to attend the groundbreaking. Despite 

the poor weather (temperature of 28° with snow flurries) the event was well attended including local 

media and community leaders and the feedback was positive. Speakers included Neil Ripplinger- 

Executive Director of the Prosser Economic Development Association; Dr. Brian Sollers- PMH Chief 

Medical Officer; Brandon Potts- Vice President of Bouten Construction; and Marti Canatsey from the 

USDA. While the USDA planned to have several representatives at the event, the weather prevented 

this, but they did send a letter which was read by Marti Canatsey (Attachment D). Now that 

construction has started, we look forward to our Grand Opening in fall/winter of 2024! 

    As you can see, November was an incredibly busy month for the project and is summarized in the 

Owner's Representatives (NV5) Project Report for November (Attachment E); the minutes from our 

last Project Team Meeting (Attachment F); and the project schedule for the next four months 

(Attachment G). We continue to focus on three main areas with this project: Design; Construction/ 

Schedule/ Budget; and Financing. However, in the coming months our primary focus will be on 

Construction/ Schedule/ Budget as design and financing activities decrease.      

 



      A. Design 

           We continue to work with the DOH to address questions they have regarding our plans. Most 

are minor and will be addressed in the next month or two and all must be resolved before we occupy 

the building. One example is the design detail for our MRI and CT suites, which are currently being 

drawn, but could not until we selected our replacement MRI and CT, (we selected GE units in 

September). We are also in the process of fine-tuning our Functional Program which details how we 

plan to use our new building. The bulk of our work with the USDA is now complete including meeting 

all of the items in their Letter of Conditions. We must, however, continue to meet all these conditions 

as we move forward. While we have obtained our building permit from the City of Prosser, we 

continue to work with them on a Development Agreement for improvements they would like us to 

move to North Gap Road. Working with our attorneys, we have developed a draft agreement which 

the City is currently reviewing. They expect to give us feedback in the next few weeks. Ultimately, the 

Prosser City Council must approve the Development Agreement. As we get further in the process, a 

draft Agreement will be shared with the Board. Our goal is to delay making any improvements until 

more is known about future North Gap Road development and when the Washington State 

Department of Transportation (WSDOT) plans to improve (widen) the Gap Road overpass. Stay 

tuned. We are also waiting to hear back from WSDOT as it relates to improvements, they want us to 

make to the intersection of North Gap Road and the westbound I82 exit and eastbound I82 on-ramp. 

The city expects us to hear from WSDOT in the near future and that it will include their plans for a 

roundabout. We are proceeding with the Sunnyside Valley Irrigation District as (SVID) on burying the 

canal on our property and they expect to complete the project before the spring irrigation season. 

Finally, we held a Furniture Fair on November 7th and have collected a tremendous amount of 

feedback about each piece of furniture trialed. The feedback has been summarized and will be 

reviewed with Open Square on December 13th. Based on the feedback, we will be seeking 

alternatives for a couple of pieces. 

 

B. Construction/Schedule/Budget 

     Once we received the go-ahead from the USDA, Bouten Construction jumped into action. In two 

short weeks, they assisted in putting up signs, moved the main entrance to the property, helped 

prepare and host the groundbreaking, began excavation of the site and is currently working on 

setting up their construction trailer putting up a security fence, etc. For the next two years there will 

be a steady stream of activity on our property, and with the signs we have erected, the whole world 

will know what is going on! As we move into the construction phase of the project, Bouten will be 

conducting Owner, Architect, Contractor (OAC) Meetings. The first introductory OAC Meeting was 

held on October 26th and the next meeting will be on December 13th after the holidays, the plan is to 

hold OAC Meetings and monthly Project Team Meetings, biweekly rather than the current weekly 

meetings. Two critically important areas as we move forward will be our construction schedule and 

budget. The construction schedule is still being refined, but is included (Attachment H) and will be 

reviewed at the December Board Work Session. There is no change to our budget from when the 

Board approved it ($112 million), but as contraction begins, we will need and plan to keep a close eye 

on it. On a positive budget note, Gary Hicks has indicated that cost of issuance for the interim 



construction loan have come in $39,225 better than our budget. Let's hope that all of our expenses 

come in under budget! 

C. Financing 

     As I previously mentioned, we are in good shape as it relates to our USDA loans and will have little 

activity with them until the construction is complete and we are ready to close our loan with them. 

They do plan to have their architect visit the construction site several times during construction to 

ensure that we are abiding by all of their requirements (e.g., ADA). We plan to close our construction 

loan with Western Alliance Bank on December 6th (Attachment Y). The locked-in interest rate will be 

5.75%. The good news is, we will only pay interest on funds that we have drawn out, which will occur 

over the next two years. As we approach the end of 2022 and begin the first half of this project, we 

plan to have most members of our Project Team at the December Board Work Session to update the 

Board about the state of the project and answer any questions the Board may have. To get a better 

understanding of the magnitude of work that has gone into this project, I have included a project and 

finance schedule comprised by Gary Hicks (Attachment I). 

 

2. 2023 Strategic Plan 

     For the past several months we have been working to finish 2022 strong, while at the same time 

preparing for 2023 and the challenges it will bring. Our 2023 Strategic Planning Process involved 

meetings with all of our team members including staff, Board, Medical Staff and leadership. The 

discussions we had about the future of Prosser Memorial Health were uplifting and inspirational. The 

ideas suggested by our team, which were distributed in the November board packet, were excellent 

and ranged from enhancements we can make soon, to long-term changes that will position us well for 

the future. While we discussed our replacement facility project, we also focused on our Pillar Goals, 

objectives, and the strategies that will enable us to achieve them. The result is our 2023 PMH Strategic 

Plan (Attachment J) which does all these things. 

     In addition, we reviewed our Mission, Vision, Values, and Standards of Behavior, and made several 

small changes (Attachment K). The 2023 Strategic Plan will be a challenge to accomplish as it contains 

many initiatives to pursue and achieve ranging from our continued recruitment of additional providers 

to the development of a replacement facility. Most of our initiatives focus on and promote our 

continued growth and our commitment to become the best hospital we can be. It is important to 

emphasize that this Plan keeps us focused on our Six Pillars of Excellence, the keys to our long-term 

success. The initiatives in the Plan are both short-term (e.g., provider recruitment) and long-term (e.g., 

the development of a replacement facility) and will enable PMH to be successful in both the short and 

long-term. The Board will be asked to approve the proposed PMH Mission, Vision, Values and 

Standards of Behavior and the 2023 Prosser Memorial Health Strategic Plan at the December Board 

Meeting. 

 

 



3. 2023 PMH Marketing Plan 

          The past couple of years PMH has worked hard to increase our marketing efforts throughout the 

Yakima Valley (Yakima to the Tri-cities) and it has paid off. We are now seeing patients from 

communities throughout the Valley and patient volumes throughout PMH have continued to rise. 

Shannon Hitchcock, Chief Communications Officer, has developed these significant marketing/ 

communication strategies that tell the Prosser Memorial Health story to the communities we serve, 

and there is more to come. Shannon has developed a draft 2023 PMH Marketing Plan (Attachment L) 

which is a comprehensive overview of how we plan to continue telling our story through direct mail, 

social media, newspaper, billboards, radio, television, town hall webcasts, etc. The plan emphasizes 

our providers, staff and the caring approach they provide to every patient, the new and advanced 

services provided at PMH (e.g., gastroenterology (GI) services); and how we will provide ongoing 

communication about all the wonderful things happening throughout Prosser Memorial Health, 

especially the development of our replacement facility. The Board received a draft 2023 PMH 

Marketing Plan last month and will be asked to approve it in December. 

 

4. 2023 PMH Information Technology (IT) Plan 

        The use of electronic health records (EHRs) and robust IT infrastructures are critical in healthcare 

today and will be long into the future. We are very fortunate to partner with Kadlec/Providence and 

share their EHR-Epic, the number one EHR in the world. PMH is now more familiar with Epic and its 

advantages and challenges. PMH has worked hard to make the use of Epic as easy as possible and will 

continue to work with our staff on enhancing our use of Epic. This along with several other initiatives 

were in our 2022 IT Plan and will also be in our 2023 IT Plan. Phillip Braem, our Chief Information 

Officer, and his staff have reviewed the 2022 IT Plan, and collected IT suggestions/opportunities 

throughout the year and the Strategic Planning Process. In addition, they have reviewed the initiatives 

in the draft 2023 PMH Strategic Plan that have IT implications. In response, they developed the draft 

2023 PMH IT Plan (Attachment M) which assesses our infrastructure needs (hardware and software) 

and our IT programmatic opportunities. Several key initiatives included in the IT plan include: ongoing 

Epic education for staff; the replacement of Lawson as our Human Resource/payroll software 

platform; the completion of the installation of the virtual desktop infrastructure throughout PMH; and 

the continued focus on cyber security to protect our system and data from outside attacks. These are 

all initiatives that will enhance the performance of our IT systems and enhance staff 

engagement/satisfaction with our IT systems. The Board will be asked to approve the 2023 PMH IT 

Plan at the December Board Meeting. 

 

5. Epic Annual Report 

         Last year Providence spun off their Community Connect division (the division that supported all 

non-Providence entities using their version of Epic) and created a new company called Community 

Technologies a Tegria Company. This company provides an Annual Report (Attachment N) which is a 

comprehensive data-driven report produced by Epic containing key values regarding our organization 

as well as comparison data with other organizations similar to us. We are currently in the process of 



reviewing this report to identify opportunities to further PMH’s usage of the tools available in our 

current version of Epic. In the near future, we will discuss key metrics and additional tools we would 

like to utilize based upon this report with staff from Community Technologies. As noted in the 2023 IT 

Plan, we will continue to enhance our utilization of the Epic System throughout 2023. 

 

Patient Loyalty 

1. Community Appreciation 

          During this season of giving, we have so much to be thankful for at PMH. This past year may have 

been the most challenging we have ever faced at PMH, as we continue to fight the COVID-19 

pandemic and saw record volumes throughout the organization. However, one thing that remained 

constant was the willingness of our team to go the extra mile for the good of our patients and the 

communities we serve. The giving spirit of our staff and organization is reflected in the attached thank 

yous (Attachments O1-O8) and shows how much we are appreciated. We are truly blessed with one 

of the most generous, compassionate, and caring teams in the country! Thank you for all that you do 

and may it be returned tenfold to each of you during this holiday season!!! 

          

Medical Staff Development 

1. 2023 PMH Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment/ Retention Plan 

     One of the reasons we have been successful the past couple of years is because of the 

development and implementation of our Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment/ Retention 

Plan. This Plan has allowed us to double the size of our Medical Staff and most importantly, better 

meet the growing health care needs of the communities we serve. As part of the Strategic Planning 

Process for 2023, we once again spent a considerable amount of time discussing the Medical Staff 

Development Pillar, and specifically, the provider needs of the communities we serve. Based on the 

needs analysis contained in the 2023 Strategic Planning Packet (not a perfect system, but one based 

on population and used across the country), we continue to have needs in both primary and specialty 

care despite all of our success. These shortages force residents to seek care elsewhere, which helps 

explain our historically low market share. The proposed 2023 PMH Medical Staff Model and Provider 

Recruitment/ Retention Plan (Attachment P) was reviewed and approved by the PMH Medical Staff 

and is recommended to the Board for approval in December. The Plan is a mix of primary (FP, PEDS, 

IM) and specialty (EM, GI, Ortho, Radiologist, Occupational Medicine) care providers, and will be 

challenging to accomplish considering the nationwide provider shortage. 

 

 

 

 



 

2. Medical Staff Recruitment 

     As we near the end of 2022, I am pleased to report that our recruitment efforts are proving to be 

successful despite nationwide shortages of providers. Last week we received a signed contract from 

Geoffrey Higgs, M.D.- Sports Medicine Orthopedic Surgeon. Dr. Higgs has a tremendous amount of 

sports medicine experience including being the team physician for several professional sports 

franchises (e.g., NFL- New England Patriots, NHL Boston Bruins). Dr. Higgs plans to join PMH in 

May2023. We’ve also learned that Josh Macke, D.O.- Emergency Medicine is planning to sign an 

agreement with PMH this week. Dr. Macke is completing his residency in emergency medicine in 

Arizona and plans to join us in June 2023 (Attachment Q). Dr. Macke is originally from the state of 

Washington and is looking forward to coming home! In addition, we have another emergency 

medicine candidate from the area that is interested in opportunities at PMH. With the recent 

announcement that Pam Morris, ARNP- Occupational Medicine is leaving PMH, we have been 

searching for a replacement provider.  I am pleased to report that we are currently in contract 

negotiations with an occupational medicine provider that is interested in joining us. I hope to 

announce at the December Board Meeting that we have several new providers joining our Medical 

Staff. Last month we announced that Dr. Jessica Dingwall- Radiologist, will be joining our team in 

March. Since then, we have been exploring options for covering us when Dr. Dingwall is off, and we 

have found several solutions including our current radiologist (Drs. Zuckerman and Ballard) and 

several area Radiologist. At this time, we have most shifts covered for 2023! In addition to these 

specialties, we continue to recruit for primary care providers including family practice, pediatrics, and 

internal medicine. While we have interviewed several candidates, we have not yet found providers 

that match our culture. These searches will be the foundation of our efforts in 2023. 

 

 
   Employee Development 

 
1. Employee Engagement 
 

     As tradition goes at PMH, we are going to fill the month of December with holiday festivities 

(Attachment R) and for the first time in three years, we will hold a holiday party (Attachment S). The 

party will be held on December 10th from 5:00 p.m. until midnight at the HAPO Center in Pasco. The 

event will include a nice dinner, dancing, and casino night. To date we have almost 500 staff and 

families signed up. On Thursday, December 16th we will have a day of celebration throughout PMH. 

This year we will have two individual contests, a Christmas Cookie Contest, and our Annual Ugly 

Sweater Contest. These contests are open to all PMH Team members, including Board members. We 

will also have a Department Holiday Gift Box Decorating Contest, with all entries to be used to 

decorate under the PMH Christmas tree in the lobby. Prizes will be awarded to the top entries and 

events like this will help everyone get into the holiday spirit. In addition, departments, and clinics 

throughout PMH have volunteered to purchase gifts for less fortunate families in our community. 

Thank you to everyone participating for your generosity. Finally, we will be serving our Annual 

Holiday Lunch/Dinner on the 15th to both the day and night shifts. The meal will once again include 



prime rib, mashed potatoes, veggies, and peppermint stick ice cream. While we wrap-up 2022, we 

are already making plans for our Annual Employee Recognition Luncheon (years of service) in 

January. Stay tuned for more details after the holidays. Also included in the Board packet is the 

December employee newsletter (Attachment T) which contains useful information such as a 

reminder for employees to complete their 2023 Benefits Open Enrollment and pictures about what 

took place last month. 

 
 
2. Employee/Medical Staff Engagement Surveys 
 
         The engagement survey process for both our staff and Medical Staff ended on November 18th. 

This process is conducted once per year and enables us to objectively and anonymously, hear from 

our staff and Medical Staff about how well we, as an organization, are engaging with our team. This 

process will identify areas of change from previous years (because we use the same survey 

instrument and questions), areas where we are performing well, and opportunities for 

improvement. We will use this information to develop strategies to enhance our performance at the 

department level and throughout the organization. At this time, we only have high level results from 

People Element (the company that performed the survey), such as participation levels. Our staff 

participation rate was 84% compared to 82% in 2021. Our Medical Staff Participation rate was 49% 

compared to 74% in 2021 and are combined participation rate was 79% compared to 81% in 2021. 

Considering everything that has been going on in healthcare, these are still strong and will provide 

us an accurate view of the engagement levels of our team. We anticipate detailed reports to be 

available in January where they will be shared with everyone and used to develop our improvement 

plans. 

 
 
 
3. Aspire Program 
 

     One of the highlights at our Annual Holiday Party is the recognition of all recipients of ASPIRE 

Awards throughout the year (Winners in 2022- (Attachment U) and the random selection of 

twelve of those individuals to receive checks ranging from $250 to $1,000. These individuals were 

recognized for living our ASPIRE Values. Specifically, they are being recognized for doing things for 

their patients, co-workers, visitors, providers, etc. that go above and beyond their regular job 

descriptions. Four Bronze Medal recipients will receive checks for $250; four Silver Medal 

recipients will receive checks for $500; and four Gold Medal recipients will receive checks for 

$1,000. Please join me in thanking each of these individuals for their efforts to exceed the 

expectations of others and truly make PMH great! 

 
 
 
 



4. International Association of Firefighters (IAFF) 
 

     Prosser Memorial Health is in negotiations with I.A.F.F., Local I-24. The Union represents twenty-
one (21) full-time & part-time EMT’s and Paramedics. After six (6) negotiating sessions the Union and 
Prosser Memorial leadership mutually agreed to move to mediation in attempt to resolve 
outstanding items. All but three (3) contract articles have tentative agreements, with the remaining 
open items being, ours of Work/Staffing Levels, Wages, and Personal Time Off (PTO). Mediation is 
scheduled for January 5th, 2023, where we look forward to securing an agreement, at which time the 
proposal would then be brought before the Board of Commissioners in January for approval. 
 

 
 

    5. Men’s Health Month 
       

     I would like to thank everyone who supported the awareness of Men's Health Month by 
participating in the No Shave November last month. The participation has been outstanding 
especially among members of the PMH Medical Staff. The contest will continue until December 15th 
when our staff will select the winners. Again, thank you for supporting the awareness of Men's 
Health and for tolerating the no shave look. Good luck to all the participants! 

 
 
Financial Stewardship 
 
1. Financial Performance- November 

     As we near the end of 2022, I am pleased to report that our financial performance remains 

strong, and our overall financial position has never been stronger in the history of Prosser Memorial 

Health (Attachment V). In November our patient volumes remained strong as indicated by our 

adjusted patient days which were 2,281 days or 22% better than our budget. This resulted in our 

gross patient revenue being $5.3 million better than our budget, for our largest gross revenue 

month of $23.4 million in our history. This is especially impressive when you factor in the fact that 

the month includes Thanksgiving Day and the day-after Thanksgiving, two historically low volume 

days. Our deductions from revenue were high, 39% over budget, but because of our strong revenue 

our net revenue for the month was $8.2 million compared to our budget of $7.3 million. Our 

expenses were 6% over budget, but certainly in line with our increased volumes and revenue. The 

result was an operating income of $1.0 million compared to our budgeted operating income of 

$452,064, resulting in an operating margin of 12.2%. After accounting for non-operating income, our 

bottom line (net income) for the month of November was $1,060,228 for a healthy total margin of 

12.8%. 

     As in previous months, as we continue to add strong financial months, our year-to-date 

performance improves. Our year-to-date gross revenue is now 15% better than budget and 28% 

better than last year. After accounting for deductions from revenue, COVID-19 Relief Funds, etc., our 

net revenue is 8% ($6.2 million) better than budget and 7% better than last year (and in 2021 we 

received $10.2 million in COVID-19 Relief Funds!). Our year-to-date expenses are 1% over budget 

and 16% over last year, resulting in an operating income that is 110% better than budget. After 

factoring in our non-operating (loss) due to investment declines, our year-to-date net income is 



$10,525,319 for a total margin of 12.1%, significantly better than our Pillar goal of 6.0%. This strong 

operating performance led to a positive cash flow in November of $1.2 million and year-to-date is 

$4.5 million. This positive cash flow performance is aided by our strong payor mix and lower capital 

spending. This has also strengthened our balance sheet where we have over $30 million in cash 

despite already spending almost $8 million on our replacement facility project. Our financial position 

remains strong and positions PMH well for the future, including the construction of our replacement 

facility. 

 

2.  2023 Operating and Capital Budgets 
 

      After several months of working with our Leadership Team, the finance staff have developed 

proposed 2023 PMH Operating and Capital Budgets (Attachment W) which the Board will be asked 

to approve at the December meeting. The budgets are based upon input from our staff, Leadership 

Team, Medical Staff and the proposed 2023 Strategic Plan. The budget packet goes into great detail 

about the specifics contained in the budgets so I will not. Please note, that we continue to be in 

growth mode, but it is difficult to predict the pace of growth in the future. This is specifically true in 

2022 because we saw a definite surge in volumes in 2021 due to the pandemic regardless of the 

volumes, we experience in 2023, our goal will be to achieve our budgeted net income and total 

margin. Based on our projections our Operating Budget is projecting a net income (bottom line) of 

$6,209,240 (6.12% total margin). This performance exceeds our Financial Stewardship Pillar Goal of 

6.0% and will enable us to continue our journey towards a new facility. Our proposed capital budget 

includes $756,587 of acquisitions and $308,982 of carry over items from the 2022 Capital Budget. 

We are projecting a positive cashflow of $729,386, which will enable us to maintain our strong 

financial position throughout the replacement facility project.      

 
3. PMH Foundation Update 

 
    With the official groundbreaking for the new hospital, the Foundation has now moved into the 

public phase of our capital campaign. The Foundation Board of Directors will be actively soliciting 

donations in 2023 through community outreach and one-on-one meetings with community 

stakeholders to raise additional funds for the project. To date we are halfway to our goal of $3 

million, with $1.5 million in pledges received.  

Save the Dates! Go Red for Women will be held Friday, February 3 at Desert Wind Winery, Bottles, 

Brews, Barbecues will be held June 9-10 at Vintner’s Village and the Wine Country Classic will be 

held Friday, September 8 at Canyon Lakes.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



Quality 
 
1. 2022 Environment of Care (EOC) Report and 2023 EOC Plan 
 

     As in previous years, the 2022 (EOC) Report and Plan for 2023 was developed by Steve Broussard, 

former Director of Support Services; (Steve retired on December 5th  , after working at PMH for 28 

years!), for Board review and approval in December (Attachment X). This comprehensive report 

covers several EOC areas that are integral to our ongoing operations but are not always top of mind 

for our staff. Steve has done an outstanding job of educating our entire Team about the importance 

of these areas and he’s always been well prepared when we are surveyed by regulatory agencies. As 

a result, we do well in the surveys and provide a safe environment for our patients, visitors, and staff. 

On behalf of PMH, I would like to thank Steve for all his efforts in this area and wish him well in his 

retirement! 

 
 

2.  Board Policies 
 
          The Board will be asked to review and approve the following Board Policies at the December 

Board Meeting: Medical Staff Recruitment (Attachment AA); Exclusive Designated Medical Specialty 
Services (Attachment BB); Affiliation (Attachment CC), and Issue Resolution Procedure- Exempt Staff 
(Attachment DD). The only changes being recommended by Administration to these policies are title 
changes, typos, etc. As a result, these policies will be placed on the December Consent Agenda. If the 
Board would like to make changes and/or discuss the proposed Policies, any Commissioner may 
remove a policy from the Consent Agenda and place it on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 
 
3. Washington State Hospital Association (WSHA) 
          

          One area that all hospitals need help with is state and federal legislative support. This would be 

prohibitively expensive for individual hospitals to do this, so most hospitals depend on state and 

national hospital associations to provide this support. For this reason, PMH is a member of WSHA and 

the American Hospital Association (AHA). Our annual dues for WSHA are approximately $38,000 per 

year based on our annual operating expenses. This represents a 2% increase, which is the maximum 

increase, even though our expenses have been increasing in excess of 10% per year due to our 

growth. I have included a letter from Cassie Sauer, President of WSHA (Attachment EE) which details 

some of the support WSHA has provided to PMH. WSHA is one of the few state hospital associations 

where all state hospitals and health systems are members and PMH plans to continue to be a 

member of WSHA in 2023. 

 

 

 



4. Board Self-Evaluation 

    A final reminder that it is time for all Board members to complete their annual self-evaluation, 

which was distributed in November. Please complete the evaluation and return it to Rosemary or 

Steve Kenny by the first week of January so that the results can be compiled and discussed in 

January. We plan to review the results in January and use the findings to develop a 2023 Board 

Action Plan. 

 

5. Board Education 

          For the first time in several years, the AHA Rural Healthcare Leadership Conference will not be held 

in Phoenix, Arizona. This year the conference will be held in San Antonio from February 19-22 

(Attachment FF). This conference addresses many issues rural hospitals are facing today and includes 

many top healthcare speakers. Several Board members have already signed-up for the conference, 

and I encourage all Board members to participate. If you are interested, please contact Rosemary. 

 

6. December Board Work Regular Session 

        The December Board Work Session will be used to update the Board on the Replacement Facility 

Project and several other strategic initiatives. Specifically, as it relates to our Replacement Facility 

Project, we plan to discuss design updates; the construction process and schedule; and the current 

status of our loan initiatives for the project. Finally, we will answer any questions the Board may have 

regarding our proposed 2023: Operating and Capital Budgets; Strategic Plan; Marketing Plan, IT Plan; 

and Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment/ Retention Plan. At the December Board Meeting, 

the Board will be asked to act on: several Board Policies; the 2023 Medical Staff Model and Provider 

Recruitment/Retention Plan; 2023 Operating and Capital Budgets; 2023 Strategic Plan; 2023 

Marketing Plan; 2023 IT Plan; and the 2023 EOC Plan. There are a lot of action items, but hopefully 

most of the Board's questions regarding these items will be discussed and answered at the Board 

Work Session. May you and your family have a Merry Christmas and a wonderful New Year! 

   

 

           

          

 

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other hospital activities, please contact me at 

(269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the hospital.                                                                              



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment A



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment B



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment C



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment D



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment E









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment F













Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment G





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment H













































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment I

















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment J



























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment K



































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment L























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M

























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment N











































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O1



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O2



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O3



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O4



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O5



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O6



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O7



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O8



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment P













































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Q







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment R



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment S





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment T





































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment U



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment V



























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment W























































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment X





















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Y 







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment AA



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment BB





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment CC



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment DD









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment EE





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment FF






	Board Packet Cover Sheet
	12.13.22 Work Session Agenda
	12.15.22 Board  Meeting Agenda
	BOC Work Plan FY2022
	_2022 PATIENT CARE SCORECARD (1)
	_2022 Strategic Plan Scorecard (1)
	11.15.2022 Board Work Session Minutes
	11.17.22 Board Minutes
	12-12-22 FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA
	11.14.22 Finance Committee Minutes updated
	December 2022 Ceo Memo
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I
	Attachment J
	Attachment K
	Attachment L
	Attachment M
	Attachment N
	Attachment O1
	Attachment O2
	Attachment O3
	Attachment O4
	Attachment O5
	Attachment O6
	Attachment O7
	Attachment O8
	Attachment P
	Attachment Q
	Attachment R
	Attachment S
	Attachment T
	Attachment U
	Attachment V
	Attachment W
	Attachment X
	Attachment Y
	Attachment AA
	Attachment BB
	Attachment CC
	Attachment DD
	Attachment EE
	Attachment FF



